ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 17, 2011
9:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Wel echowski, Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan, Vice Chair
Senator Al bert Kookesh

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senat or Cathy G essel

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 26

"An Act exenpting vehicles fueled solely by electricity or
conpressed natural gas from notor vehicle registration fees and
taxes; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSSB 26(STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 61

"An Act making corrective anendnents to the Alaska Statutes as
recommended by the revisor of statutes; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED CSSB 61( STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 30

“"An Act providing for the release of certain property in the
custody of a law enforcenment agency to the owner under certain
conditions."

- MOVED CSSB 30(STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE
PREVI OUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 26

SHORT TI TLE: FEE/ TAX EXEMPTI ON FOR CERTAI N VEHI CLES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

01/19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 17, 2011



01/19/11 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 19/ 11 (S) STA, FIN

01/ 27/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
01/ 27/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 27/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 15/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 15/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 15/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 17/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 61
SHORT TI TLE: 2011 REVISOR S BI LL
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF LEG SLATI VE COUNCI L

01/ 24/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 24/ 11 (S) STA, JUD

02/ 15/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 15/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 15/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 17/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 30
SHORT TI TLE:. RETURN OF SEI ZED PROPERTY
SPONSOR(s): DYSON

01/ 19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11
01/19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) STA, JUD

02/ 03/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 03/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 03/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 17/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

GENEVI | VE WJTUSI K, Staff to Senator Lesil MGCuire
Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions on SB 26.

KATHERI NE KURTZ, Assistant Revisor of Statutes

Legal Services

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented and explained the proposed
amendnent to SB 61.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 17, 2011



SENATOR DYSQN, Sponsor of SB 30

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced proposed CS to SB 30.

CHUCK KOPP, Staff to Senator Dyson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Explained changes in CSSB 30 for the
sponsor.

VI CTOR KESTER, Executive Director

Al aska Ofice of Victinms R ghts

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 30.

LES SYREN, Attorney
Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 30.

DOUG WOLVER, Adni ni strative Attorney

Al aska Court System

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 30.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:02: 26 AM

CHAIR BI LL WELECHOWNSKI called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Paskvan, G essel, Kookesh, and Chair
W el echowski . Senator Meyer arrived soon thereafter.

SB 26- FEE/ TAX EXEMPTI ON FOR CERTAI N VEHI CLES

9:02: 48 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOWNSKI announced the first order of business would
be SB 26

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI noted the commttee had previously adopted a
CS, making version X the working docunment. He explained the new
fiscal note has now arrived, and shows a cost to the state of
$2,000 for FY12 and an indeterm nate change in revenues, because
it is inpossible to project the nunmber of vehicles that wll
qualify. The Departnent of Mtor Vehicles (DW) projects the
initial revenue loss to be snmall, but acknow edges it wll grow
as alternative fueled vehicles gain in popularity. He also noted

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 17, 2011



the special fee for hybrids will sunset after three years, and
the special fee for vehicles fueled exclusively by alternative
fuels wll sunset after seven years, so the revenue |inpacts
appear to be insignificant.

GENEVI | VE WOJTUSI K, staff to Senator MQ@iire, said the fiscal
note has not changed, because it is indetermnate how many
vehicles wll be affected, but she said the DW has no problem
with the bill going forward.

SENATOR Paskvan noved to report CS for SB 26, version X, from
cormittee wth individual recommendati ons and acconpanyi ng
fiscal note(s).

CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI  announced that w thout objections, CSSB
26( STA) passed fromthe Senate State Affairs standing conmttee.

9:05: 18 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOMBKI announced a brief at-ease.

SB 61-2011 REVISOR S BI LL

9: 06: 35 AM
CHAlI R W ELECHOWBKI announced consi derati on of SB 61.

KATHERI NE KURTZ, Assistant Revisor, Legislative Legal Services,
said that after hearing questions from the commttee and doing
additional research, she concluded that Section 3 of SB 61 is
unclear. It could represent a substantive change. She stated she
woul d prefer to pull the section out of the revisor's bill at
this point.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked if it is legal to do a substantive
change in a revisor's bill.

M5. KURTZ responded it is better to handle such a change in a
substantive bill.

CHAIR W ELECHOABKI agreed that there are better vehicles for
that change. He noted the conmittee had a proposed anendnent
before them identified as [27-LS0152\B. 1.

CHAIR WELECHOWNSKI offered Amendnent 1, and objected for
di scussi on purposes
AVENDVENT 1

27-1LS0152\B. 1

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 17, 2011



OFFERED | N THE SENATE
TO SB 61

Page 2, lines 2 - 7:
Delete all material.

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

M5. KURTZ said the amendnent renpbves Section 3 from the B draft
of the bill.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked if the section will need to be put back in
| ater on.

MS. KURTZ answered that she would like to review the issue over
the interim

CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI asked if could there be a legal challenge
because of this section, if the bill is not changed.

M5. KURTZ responded it is conceivable.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked if SB 61 has a referral to the judiciary.
CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI sai d yes.

MS. KURTZ said it was her recommendation to take out Section 3.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI renpoved his objection to the amendnent. There
bei ng no further objection, Arendnment 1 was adopt ed.

SENATOR PASKVAN noved to report SB 61, as anended, from
commttee with individual recomendations and attached fi scal
not e(s).

CHAI R W ELECHOWEKI announced that w thout objection CSSB 61(STA)
noved fromthe Senate State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

9:14: 49 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOMBKI announced a brief at ease

SB  30- RETURN OF SEI ZED PROPERTY

9:16: 03 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI announced consi derati on of SB 30.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 17, 2011



SENATOR PASKVAN noved to adopt the proposed conmittee substitute
(CS) to SB 30, |abeled 27-LS-0344\M as the working docunent.

CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI obj ected for discussion purposes.

SENATOR FRED DYSON, sponsor of SB 30, said the CS is a better
product. It includes provisions that <clarify what kinds of
evidence are excluded from being returned. They have also
inserted the Ofice of Victine' Rights (OVR) as the gate-keeper
for assistance in return of property.

CHUCK KOPP, staff to Senator Fred Dyson, explained that SB 30
provi des property owners with a clearly identifiable process to
petition the court for recovery of their property which is being
held as evidence. The CS was drafted in response to concerns
that giving victine a direct voice in those situations my
result in too many requests for hearings. The OVR is willing to
assunme an internediary role in such requests. |If a preponderance
of evidence shows that the victim does own the property, OVR
could contact the |aw enforcenent agencies and see if they have
a claim on the property. If OVR believes the victinis claim
exceeds that of the |aw enforcenent agency, it can request the
agency to ask for a hearing. Once that request is received, the
agency has ten days to request a hearing. If a crimnal case is
al ready pending, the hearing wll be before the court that has
jurisdiction. If no crimnal case is pending, the hearing wll
be before the district or superior court where the property is
physically |ocated. The burden of proof is preponderance of
evidence, and the court nmy inpose reasonable conditions on
return of property to the owner. Section 2 of the CS establishes
within Title 24, Chapter 65, the authority for the OVR to
request return of property from a |aw enforcenent agency on
behalf of a victim A victimis defined as any person who is the
owner of property in the custody of a | aw enforcenent agency.

9:23:43 AM

VI CTOR KESTER, Executive Director, Al aska Ofice of Victins'
Rights (OVR), said the OVR is ready to assist crine victins
attain a nmechanism to ask the <court for return of their
property. The OVR wants to work with others in a responsible
fashion. They also want to be sure that this proposed statute is
within the boundaries of l|aw and ethics and does not present
chall enges. He noted there has been concern this nay inpede
certain functions of |aw enforcenent. Under the proposed
| egislation, the crime victim wwuld come to O/R O/R would
investigate, and if they determne the victimhas a valid claim
they woul d ask the agency for a hearing on behalf of the victim

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 17, 2011



If the agency fails to return the property, it has to file a
request with the court for a hearing.

CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI said that was al so his understandi ng.

9:26: 15 AM

MR. KESTER said his nmain concern would be the volunme of cases.
He believes the legislation is necessary, but if there is a high
vol une of requests, a fiscal note m ght be needed | ater.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked about victimconfidentiality.

MR. KESTER replied the proposed |egislation would not alter the
exi sting broad confidentiality protections for crinme victins.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked about potential concerns over fisca
i npacts.

MR. KESTER answered his prelimnary assessnent is that it would
not require additional staff. For exanple, 200 cases during a
fiscal year would have an inpact, but he doesn't expect that
many cases. The problem is relatively rare. SB 61 would help
crime victins.

9:31:33 AM

LES SYREN, attorney, stated that his client owns a jewelry store
in Anchorage. In 2007, he received a phone call from the police
in the mddle of the night and was asked to conme to his store.
The police served a search warrant on the property, and renoved
t ook about $5,000 worth of nerchandise from the store, saying
they believed it mght be stolen property. A few nonths |ater
the attorney asked for return of the property, but he never
heard back from the police. Years went by. H's client was never
charged, never told that he was a suspect. This property was
nmer chandi se, and sone was actually on |ay-away. Wen people cane
in to get their nmerchandise, the store had to return their
noney. M. Syren said wote to the police chief again |ast week,
but he has not yet heard back. H's client is suffering a
financial |oss. He doesn't want to see frivolous requests for
return of property, but this one is not. H's client has no
relief.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if the agency has any evidence that the
property bel onged to soneone el se.

MR. SYREN answered not that he knows, but he has heard nothing
fromthe police

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 17, 2011



SENATOR PASKVAN asked when the police have taken property, does
this come within the definition of a crinme victim

MR. SYREN responded that is a very good question. The police
have taken his client's property without telling himwhy.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if his <client can provide proof of
owner shi p.

MR. SYREN said he would be glad to.

SENATOR PASKVAN questioned whether this situation would fall
within the definition of a crime victim

MR. KOPP responded that Section 2 of the commttee substitute
says "crime victim includes any person who is the owner of
property in the custody of a | aw enforcenent agency.

CHAIR W ELECHOASKI asked if there is dispute over who owns the
property, could OVR be in the position of representing a
crimnal.

MR. KOPP explained that vetting would happen during the initia
investigation. Sonetinmes it can take the police a while to sort
out what happened. These cases are vetted before they nmake it to
court. OVR would learn the story fromthe investigation

9:40: 18 AM

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI said the CS does not appear to give OVR a
decision with regard to filing a case with the court. It appears
to be mandatory.

MR. KOPP replied that the reference on page 2, line 1 to "shall"
request a hearing refers to the |aw enforcenent agency. OVR has
the authority to conduct an investigation and they can ask for a
hearing. Once they do request it, the |aw enforcenent agency has
ten days to request a hearing.

SENATOR DYSON said he appreciates all the questions. He noted
that last year the Alaska Peace Oficers Association had

endorsed a simlar bill, but this year they had one person on
the board who didn't want to endorse it. He specul ated that once
the word gets out that this nechanism exists, the police will be

nmore vigorous in returning property quickly. Mking the victim
whol e is a duty.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 17, 2011



9:44:59 AM

DOUG WOLVER, Adm nistrative Attorney, Al aska Court System said
he net with the sponsor's staff and also sent the proposed bil
to several judges for conment. The court is always neutral when
it cones to legislation, but several judges asked what the
standard of proof for ownership would be. The CS clarifies that
it is a preponderance of the evidence. The next question was how
cases that don't get filed as crimnal cases in court would be
handl ed. The CS establishes that either superior or district
court would have jurisdiction.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked M. Wl ver to clarify how the police would
have the property if they haven't caught the perpetrator.

MR. WOLVER responded they could find it in a pawn shop, or
through a search warrant. He noted that many property crimnes
don't get prosecuted.

SENATOR KOCOKESH asked if any judges didn't like the bill.

VR. WOLVER said they don't take official positions on
| egislation. They don't see as an issue with this bill, but a
request would not normally cone to them

CHAI R W ELECHONSKI asked if the judges were concerned about the
potential for a flood of clains into the court system

MR. WOLVER replied he did not hear concern about that from the
judges. He noted that fiscal notes are educated guesses. In this
case, DOL has an undeterm ned fiscal note. They probably won't
see many cases, but it is hard to know.

SENATOR KOOKESH said if there is a flood of cases then we know
there is a problem

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if there would be a filing fee invol ved.

MR. WOLVER said he had not thought of that, but there would
probably just be a notion unless there was no underlying case
involved. In that case, there mght be a filing fee.

9:50:19 AM

SENATOR PASKVAN nmoved to report CS for SB 30, version M from
commttee wth individual recomendati ons and acconpanyi ng
fiscal notes.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 17, 2011



CHAIR W ELECHOAMSKI  announced that without objection, CSSB
30(STA) passed fromthe Senate State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

9:51: 38 AM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,
Chair Wel echowski adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Conmittee at 9:51 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 17, 2011



